Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited (formerly
known as Cummins Sales and Service Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and total comprehensive income (comprising of
profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales and Services Private Limited)
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

5.

The Company’s Board of Dircctors is responsible for the mallers stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 af the Act,
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

. In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

8.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

R)Q,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales and Services Private Limited)
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

10. We
and

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12.As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

(g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books, except for the back-up of the books of account and other
books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on a daily basis on servers
physically located in India and the matters stated in paragraph 12(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025, from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith, reference is made
to our remarks in paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph 12(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A’

R\-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales and Services Private Limited)
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1.

ii.

Hii.

v.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company was not required to recognise a provision as at March 31, 2025 under the applicable
law or Indian Accounting Standards, as it does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contract. The Company did not have any derivative contracts as at March 31, 2025.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note
39 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 39 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c)Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.
However, the audit trail feature did not operate throughout the year. Accordingly, the question of our
commenting on whether the audit trail was tampered with or preserved by the Company as per the
statutory requirements for record retention, does not arise.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales and Services Private Limited)
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisitc approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300004
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Pravin Rajani

Partner

Membership Number: 127460
UDIN: 25127460BMOSXG2814
Place: Kolkata

Date: May 28, 2025
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Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(g) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Pal Jay Power
Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as Cummins Sales and Service Private Limited) on the financial
statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under
clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Pal Jay Power
Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as Cummins Sales and Service Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

R%
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal (inancial conlrols wilh reference Lo [inancial slalements is a process designed 1o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilily of (inancial reporling and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statcments includes thosc policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
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Pravin Rajani

Partner

Membership Number: 127460
UDIN: 25127460BMOSXG2814
Place: Kolkata

Date: May 28, 2025
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and furnished by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us during the course of our audit, and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we report that:

i.

il.

1ii.

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation, of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. However, no
physical verification was carried out by the Management during the year. Accordingly, the
discrepancies, if any, could not be ascertained and therefore, we are unable to comment on
whether the discrepancies, if any, have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

The Company does not own any immovable properties (Refer Note 3 to the financial statements).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(1)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) and Intangible Assets. Consequently, the question of our commenting on whether the
revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount of change,
if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate of the net carrying value of each class of Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or Intangible Assets does not arise.

No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
(formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has
appropriately disclosed the details in the financial statements does not arise.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by Management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores,
in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company has filed
quarterly returns or statements with such banks, and the discrepancies noted in such quarterly
return or statements with the unaudited books of account were not material.

The Company has not made any investments, granted secured/ unsecured loans/advances in
nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. Therefore, the reporting
under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b), (ii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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iv.

vii. (a)

(b)

Viil.

ix. (a)

(b)

O]

(d)

(e)

®

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Sections 185 and 186. Therefore, the reporting under clause
3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of employees’ state insurance, goods and services tax though there has been a slight delay
in a few cases, and is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, income tax and other statutory
dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

There are no transactions previously unrecorded in the books of account that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961.

As the Company did not have any loans or other borrowings from any lender during the year, the
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been utilised for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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x (a)

(b)

xi (a)

(b)

()

Xil.

xiil.

xiv. (a)

(b)

xvi. (a)

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is nol applicable Lo the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across
any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, a report under Section 143(12)
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 was not required to be filed with the Central Government. Accordingly, the reporting under
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the Company has received
whistle-blower complaints during the year, which have been considered by us for any bearing on
our audit and reporting under this clause.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Section 188 of the Act. The details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party
Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company is not required to
constitute an Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this extent, the
reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

The reports of the Internal Auditor for the period under audit have been considered by us.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the provisions of
Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India

Act, 1934. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

-
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(b)

The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance activities during the
year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the

(d)

XVii.

Xviii.

Xix.

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group. Accordingly, the reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial year or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly the
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios (Refer note 38 to the financial statements), ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any amount remaining unspent under
Section 135(5) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.
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xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included
in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009

Pravin Rajani

Partner

Membership Number: 127460
UDIN: 25127460BMOSXG2814
Place: Kolkata

Date: May 28, 2025



Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

i As at Asat
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 (a) 137.87 133.88
Right-of-use assets 3(c) 602.83 600.23
Other intangible assets 3(b) 2.56 -
Financial assets

Other non-current financial assets 4 85.39 56.81
Deferred tax assets (net) 5 308.20 247.40
Total non-current assets 1,136.85 1,038.32
Current assets
Tnventories 6 3,218.00 2,947.74
Financial assets

() Trude reecivabley 7 3,005.95 3ubL/n

(b) Cash and cash equivalents 8 175.75 811.78

(c) Other current financial assets 9 125.61 89.05
Contract Assets 10 204.49 70.71
Income tax asset (net) 11 - 119
Other current assets 12 523.72 780.23
Total current assets 7.253.52 7,.862.45
Total assets 8.490.37 8.000.77
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 1,200.00 1,200.00
Other equity 14 3,157.70 2,341.79
Total equity 4.357.70 3.541.79
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

(2) Lease liabilities 36 479-96 548.77
Provisions 15 343.69 302.59
Total non-current liabilities 823.065 B51.:36
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Lease liabililies 36 154.64 99.76
(b) Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 16 39.83 89.50
(ii) Total outstanding dues other than b(i) above 16 1,751.59 2,937.53
(c) Other current financial liabilities 17 323.76 321,19
Provisions 15 63.11 60.65
Current tax liabilities (net) 19 43.27 -
Other current liabilities 18 832.82 998.99
Total current liabilities 3,200.02 4.507.62
Total liabilities 3,032.07 5:358.08
Total equity and liabilitics 8,390.37 8,900.77
Summary of material accounting policy information and other policy information 1&2
The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 20 20,040.34 19,902.49
Other income 21 74.05 22.61
Total income 20.114.39 19.925.10
Expenses
Purchases of traded goods and services 22 15,096.84 15,064.71
Changes in inventories of traded goods 23 (270.26) (220.91)
Employee benefit expenses 24 2,349.22 2,207.05
Finance costs 25 72.83 62.60
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 216.42 151.82
Other expenses 26a 1,517.86 1,330.70
Total expenses 18.982.91 18,595.97
Profit before tax 1,131.48 1,329.13
Income tax expense
Current tax 26b 371.43 369.96
Deferred tax 26b (59.86) (45.27)
Tax for earlier years 26b 1.20 8.69
Total tax expense 312.77 333.38
Profit for the year 818.71 995.75
Other comprehensive income
Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations 30 (3.74) 58.14
Income tax relating to this item 0.94 (14.63)
Net other comprehensive income/(expense) not to be reclassified to profit (2.80) 43.51
or loss in subsequent periods
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax (2.80) 43.51
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 815.01 1,039.26
Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (3 ) 27 6.82 8.30
(Nominal value per share % 10)
Summary of material accounting policy information and other policy information 1&2

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31,2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

A) Equity share capital

(1) Current year

As at April 01, 2024 Changes in equity
share capital during

the current year

As at March 31, 2025

1,200.00 =

1.200.00

(2) Previous year

As at April 01, 2023 Changes in equity
share capital during

the currenl year

As at March 31, 2024

1,200.00 =

1,200.00

Also, refer note 13(f) for change in shareholding after March 31, 2025

B) Other equity
Reserves and surplus

. Retained earnings
Particulars
Balance as at April 1, 2023 1,302.52
Profit for the year 995.76
Other comprehensive income 58.14
Income tax effect on above (14.63)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,341.79
Profit for the year 818.71
Other comprehensive income (3.74)
Income tax effect on above 0.94
Balance as at March 31, 2025 2.157.70

Summary of material accounting policy information and other policy information

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP

Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year ended
Particulars March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024
1 Cash generated from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,131.48 1,329.14
(a) Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expense 216.42 151.82
Finance cost 72.83 62.60
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment/assets written-off (0.38) (3.22)
Interest income and interest on IT Refund (12.98) (6.29)
Provision for doubtful advance-EMD 20.44 =
Provision for excess and obsolete inventory - 32.63
Provision for doubtful debts (net) 175.41 26.50
Gain on leuse modification (41.59) -
430.15 264.04
(b) Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivahles (19.61) (1,266.02)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (270.26) (253.56)
(Incrcasc)/decrcase current and non-current financial assels (86.33) (44.12)
(Increasce)/decrcase contract assets (133.77) (70.71)
(Increase)/decrease other current and non-current assets 256.51 (552.11)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (1,237.01) 1,191.37
Increase/(decrease) current and non-current financial liabilities 2.57 73.46
Increase/(decrease) other current and non-current liabilities (166.17) 202.48
Increase/(decrease) current and non-current provisions 39.82 45.01
(1,614.25) (664.20)
Total adjustments (a+b) (1,184.10) (400.16)
Cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (52.62) 928.98
Tax paid (net of refunds and interest thereon) (328.17) (403.91)
Net (used in)/cash generated from operating activities (380.79) 525.07
2 Cash flow (used in)/ from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (52.32) (93.75)
Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equipment 0.38 3.31
Interest received 3.42 1.87
Net cash flow (used in)/ from investing activities (48.52) (88.57)
3 Cash flow (used in)/ from financing activities
Payment of lease liabilities (principal) (133.89) (164.00)
Finance Cost (72.83) (3.18)
Net cash flow (used in)/ from financing activities (206.72) {167.18)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (1+2+3) (636.03) 269.32
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 811.78 542.46
Cash and cash equivalent at the year end 175.75 811.78
Components of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand 0.80 0.23
Cheques on hand = =
Bank balances in current account 174.95 811.55
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 8) 175.75 811.78

The accompanying notes are an intergral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

a)

b)

c)

d)

Material Accounting Policies Information

Corporate information

Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited (formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited ) was incorporated in
India on 17 January 2012 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was formed as joint venture between
Cummins India Limited (‘Cummins India’) and SVAM Power Plants Private Limited (‘'SVAM Power’). The Company became
100% subsidiary to Cummins India Limited with effect from October 1, 2015 as per approval of Board of Directors. Subsequent
to year end, 100% equity shares have been trasferred to PAL SVAM Power Solutions Private Limited (refer note 13(f)). The
Company is engaged in trading of diesel engine components, oil and lubricants, batteries, DG sets and engines. The Company
also provides repair and maintenance services to diesel engines and gensets manufactured by Cummins India Limited.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which
have been measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Revised Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and services and the
time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon management’s
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those estimates and revisions, if any, are recognised in
the period in which the results are known.

Property plant and equipment, depreciation and amortisation

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction, net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss (if any). All significant costs relating to the acquisition and installation of property plant and equipment are
capitalised. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the statement of profit and loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation is provided using the straight-line method based on the useful life of assets as specified in
Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013 except for leasehold improvement which is amortised over the period of lease or useful
life of the asset, whichever is lower.

Asset _ Useful life
Plant and machinery 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
‘I'ools 3 years

IT hardware & software 3/6 years
Office equipment 5 years
Vehicles 4/8 vears

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period




Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

e)

ii) Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for acquisition. Intangible assets are amortised over 3 to 6 years

Softwares are amortised over a period of useful lives from the date of purchase/date of completion of development and put to
use, being the estimated useful life as per the management estimate or license term whichever is less.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets recognised as at 1st April 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the

deemed cost.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence. The material costs are
determined on weighted average basis and the valuation of finished goods represents the combined cost of material, labour and
all manufacturing overheads. Net realisable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to make the sale. Material in transit is valued at cost incurred till

date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of products

Revenue from contracts with customers for sale of products is recognised, generally at a point in time, when control of the
goods is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the transaction price which is the consideration that the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods, excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government e.g.
goods and service tax (GST). The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements.

Sale of services

The Company provides various services like repairs and maintenance services, Annual maintenance contracts and installation
services. The Company recognizes revenue from installation services and repair and maintenance services at a point in time,
after completion of the activity. Revenue from Annual maintenance contracts is recognised over a period of time i.e based on
the proportionate completion method. Completion is determined as a proportion of time elapsed under the contract till date to
the total contract period.

Contract Assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays the consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due).

_,;.’z‘E,Q'\LI hoﬁ S



Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

g)

h)

A)
D

ii)

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assels are measured al cosl, less any accumulaled depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurcment of lcase liabilitics. The cost of right of usc asscts includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Righl-o[-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated nseful
lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased assct transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to

impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section "n" impairment of non-financial assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including insubstance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees.

In caleulaling the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of offices and warehouses. It also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Employee Benefits

Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with Ind AS 19- ‘Employee Benefits'.
Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans:

The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. The Company has defined
contribution plans for post employment benefits in the form of provident fund for employees which is administered by

Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The contributions are accounted for as employee benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contribution is recognised as an asset to the extent cash refund or reduction in future contribution is available.

Defined benefit plans
Unfunded Plan: The Company has defined benefit plans for Post-employment benefits in the form of Gratuity for all employees.

Liability for above defined benefit plans is provided on the basis of valuation, as at the balance sheet date, carried out by
independent actuary. The actuarial method used for measuring the liability is the Projected Unit Credit method.

- L:.;.O\ U[_ O-‘;‘;\\“‘- .
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

i)

)

k)

D

B) Other long-term employee benefit (Unfunded)

Liability for Compensated Absences is provided on the basis of valuation, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by
independent actuary. The Actuarial valuation method used for measuring the liability is the Projected Unit Credit method.
Under this method, projected accrued benefit is calculated at the beginning of the year and again at the end of the year for each
benefit that will accrue for active members of the Plan. The "projected accrued benefit " is based on the Plan's accrual formula
and upon service as of the beginning or end of the year, but using a member's final compensation, projected to the age at which
the employee is assumed to leave active service. The Plan liability is the actuarial present value of the " projected accrued
benefits " as of the end of the year for active members.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

The present value of defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
flows by reference to the market yeild at the end of the reporting period on the government bonds that has terms approximately
the terms of the related obligation.

Income-tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the taxation laws prevailing
and applicable for the relevant assessment year. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income taxes are recognised for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their tax bases in the financial statements. The effect
on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in the tax rates is recognised using the tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. A disclosure for a contingent liability is
made where there is a possible obligation arising out of past event, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation arising out of past event where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company tests for impairments at the close of the accounting period if and only if there are indications that suggest a
possible reduction in the recoverable value of an asset. If the recoverable value of an Asset, i.e. the net realisable value or the
economic value in use of a cash generating unit, is lower than the carrying amount of the asset the difference is provided for as
impairment. However, if subsequently the position reverses and the recoverable amount becomes higher than the then carrying
value the provision to the extent of the then difference is reversed, but not higher than the amount provided for.

Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand and at bank, d,ef(la
banks, other shorl -term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. SN\ .-
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

m)

A)

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Financial instruments
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value and transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the

financial asset is also adjusted.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its assets measured at
amortised cost and assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 34 details how the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

- The Company has transferred the right to receive cash flows from the financial assets; or

- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the
cash flows to one or more receipients.

Where the entity has transferred the asset, the Company evaluated whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of the ownership of the
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the
Company retains control of the financial assets, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement
in the financial asset.

QY



Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited
(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

n)

B)
)

i)

)

i)
ii)

i)

iif)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction cost.

Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of

these instruments.

Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are
based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include
discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may vary from actual realization on future date.

Fair value measurements

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value on initial recognition and at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy. This is described, as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
awhole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This note
summarises accounting policy for fair value.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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a)

b)

c)

d)

i)

if)

iii)

Other accounting policies
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using current rate of interest. Interest income is included in the finance income in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the

rate applicable.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for events of bonus issue; bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders;
share split; and reverse share split.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Subsequent recognition
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency as at the balance sheet date are converted at the exchange rate prevailing on

that date.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as
income or as expenses in the year in which they arise.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

{Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

3. Capital work-in-progress

At the beginning of the year
Additions during the period
Capitalised during the period
At the end of the year

4. Other non current financial assets (carried at amortised cost)

Security deposits

Break up of security details

Security deposit considered good - Secured

Security deposit considered good - Unsecured

Security deposit which have significant increase in credit risk
Security deposit - credit impaired

5. Deferred tax

A Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax asset

Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for employee benefits
Depreciation and amortisation
Lease liability

Other

As at

As at

March 31, 2025 March a1.2024

5127
(51.27)

93.75
{aa,75)

As at

Asat

March 31, 2025 Murch 11,202

85.39

56.81

85.39

56.81

Agat Ag at
March 31, 2025 March 31.2024
85.39 56.81
85.39 56.81
Asat As at
March 31, zoz2s March 31.20204
78.51 34.36
102.37 9141
28.30 30.08
7.99 13.95
91.03 77.60
308.20 247.40

The Company offsets the tax assets and liabilities, if and only if, it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to

income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets on the account of

Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for employee benefits
Depreciation and amortisation
Lease liability

Other

Deferred tax assets on the account of

Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for employee benefits
Depreciation and amortisation
Lease liability

Other

April 1, 2024 Recognised in other Recognisedin  March 31, 2025
comprehensive income profit and loss
34.36 44.15 78.51
9141 0.94 10.02 102.37
30.08 (1.78) 28.30
13.95 (5.96) 7.99
77.60 13.43 9103
247,40 0.94 59.86 308.20
April 1, 2023 Recognised in other Kecognised in 31-Mar-24
comprehensive income profit and loss
- 1.90 34.36
(14.63) 11.32 9141
¢ (3.40) 30.08
= 10.37 13.95
- - 2508 7i.60
(14.03) 45.27 24740




Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

5. Deferred tax (Contd.)

B The major compoaents of income tax expenses for the vears ended Mar 31, 2025 and March 31,2024 are:

Statement of profit and loss:
Current income tax

Current income tax charge

Tax expense pertaining to earlier vears

Deferred tax
Relating to originating and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expenses reported in the statement of profit and loss

Other comprehensive income:
Income tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:

Net gain on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

6. Inventories

Traded goods (including GIT of INR 254.77 lacs (March 31, 2024: INR 497.33 lacs))

Note:
i) Cumulative provision made for excess and obsolete inventories upto year Mar 31,2025, 361.69 lacs (upto March 31, 2024: INR 282.48 lacs).

ii) Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value amounted to INR 5.48 lacs (March 31, 2024 — nil).
iii) Inventory is pledged as security against limit sanctioned by HDFC bank.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
37143 369.96
120 8.60
(59-86) (45.27)
12.77 333.38
0.94 (14.63)
0.94 (14.63)
Asat

March 31, 2025

3.218.00

2,947.74

3.218.00

2,947.74




Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

7. Trade receivables

Trade receivables from contract with customers- billed
Trade receivables from contract with customers — related parties (refer note 31)
Less: Loss allowance

Break up for security details

Trade receivable consider good- Unsecured
Trade receivable which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade reeeivable which are credit impaired

Impairment loss allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivahle - eredit impaired

Total

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts

Asat As at
March 31. 2025 March 31.2024
3,182.19 3,162.04
135.67 136.21
(311.91) (136.50)
3,005.95 3,161.75
3,005.95 3,161.75
ALATY iih 50
A X 7uR 7
(a1 01) (1n6.50)
3,005.95 $,161.75
As at As at

Murch 31, 2025 Marel
Opening provision 136.50 110.00
Add: Additions ( Net) 175.41 26.50
Less: Write-offs* - -
Closing provision 311,91 136.50
*Total bad debts written-off during the year ended March 31, 2025 is Rs. Nil (year ended March 31, 2024: Nil).
L Current Year-Ageing for for
Outstanding for the following periods from due date
Particulars . Less than 6 6 months-1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Unbilled Not Due months year
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 837.67 1,516.92 505.64 139.18 6.54 3,005.95
(it) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 167.06 54.03 83.04 304.13
(111) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - - - =
(1v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - 7.78 7.78
2. Previous Year- Ageing for account for
Outstanding for the following periods from due date
Particulars Less than 6 6 months-1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Unbilled  |Not Due onihs vear ¥ 3y 3y
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good - 1,101.91 1,551.73 286.69 100.29 51.60 69.53 3,161.75
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - 18.14 31.96 29.46 49.16 128.72
(i) Disputed Trade Receivabies - considered good - - - - = = -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - = 7.78 7.78

No trade receivable or advances are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30

to 90 days.
For terms and conditions and transactions with related parties refer note 31.

The trade receivables are carried at amortised cost.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

8. Cash and cash equivalents (carried at amortised cost)

Cash on hand
Balance with banks in current accounts

9. Other current financial assets

Security deposits

Interest accrued on security deposits

Break up for security details

Security deposit considered good - Secured

Security deposit considered good - Unsecured

Security deposit which have significant increase in credit risk

Security deposit - credit impaired
Less: Loss allowance

* The security deposits are measured at amortised cost.

10. Contract Assets

Contract assets relating to Comprehensive Annual Maintenance Contract
Less: Loss allowance
Total contract assets

Refer note 35 for additional disclosures

11, Income tax asset (net)

Advance Income Tax (March 31, 2024: net of provision for taxation INR 371.15 lacs)

12. Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Balances with statutory/government authorities
Prepaid expenses

Advance to suppliers

Other claims receivable

Other receivable

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

¢

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 Murch 31.2024
0.80 0.23
174.95 811.55
175.75 811,78
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 312029
108.50 81.50
17.11 7.55
125.61 89.05
108.50 81.50
39.42 18.98
(n9.42) (18.08)
108.50 8 1.50

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31.2024

204.49

70.71

204.49

70.71

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

119

1.19

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31.2024

222,59 368.69
80.86 75.42
60.42 91.68
159.78 116.13

0.07. 128.31
523.72 780.23
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

13.

15.

Share capital
Asat As at

Murch 31, 2025 March q1.202
Authorised
12,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each ,200.00 1,200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
12,000,000 cquity shares of ¥ 10 each 1,200.00 1,200.00

1,200,040 1.200.00
Reconciliation of number of shares
Equity shares As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Nos. Amount Nos. Amount

Balance as at the beginning of the year 1,20,00,000 1,200.00 1,20,00,000 1,200.00
Increase during the year - - - -
Balance as at the end of the ycar L.20,00.000 1.200.00 1.20.00.000 1,200,00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share, Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company, alter distribution of all preferential amounts, in the proportion to their shareholding.

Of the above equity shares, 11,999,995 (March 31, 2024: 11,999,990) shares of ¥ 10 each are held by the Holding Company, Cummins India Limited. Remaining 5 equity shares
are held by Mr. Pankaj Kapoor and Cummins India Limited jointly (March 31, 2024: 5 equity shares each werc held by Vivek Shouraiah Malapati and Cummins India Limited
jointly and 5 equity shares each were held by Mr. Madankumar Kotragauda Patil and Cummins India Limited jointly).

No shares have been allotted as fully paid-up shares by way of bonus issues nor has any bought back of shares happened during the period of five years immediately preceding
the reporting date.

Details of shares held by the promoter holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Nos. % Nos. %

Equity shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid

Cummins India Limited (Refer note ¢ above) 1,19,99,095 100,00% 1,19,99,990 100.00%
Cummins India Limited jointly held by Pankaj Kapoor 5 0.00% - 0.00%
Cummins India Limited jointly held by Vivek Shouraiah Malapati 0.00% 5 0.00%
Cummins India Limited jointly held by Madankumar K. Patil 0.00% 5 0.00%

Change in Shareholding pattern subsequent to the year end

Effective April 01, 20235, subsequent to the year end, 100% of the equity shares of the company are transferred from Cummins India Limited to PAL SVAM Power Solutions
Private Limited in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Share Purchase Agreement dated February 7, 2025. Accordingly the Committee of the Board is
reconsitituted with the following Directors w.e.f April 01, 2025:

i) Prashant Luthra

ii) Jayant Malhotra

iii) Sonia Malhotra

iv) Ashima Luthra

v) Meera Luthra

vi) Hemant Bajaj

Other equity
As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Retained earnings
Opening balance 2,341.79 1,302.52
Profit for the year 818.71 995.76
Other comprehensive income for the year (2.80) 43.51
Closing balance 3,157.70 2,341.79

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve

Retained earnings:
Retained earnings arc created from the profits of the Company, as adjusted for distribution to owners, transfer to other reserve, remeasurement of defined benefit plans ete.

Provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31.2024
Provision for post retirement benefit and compensated absences (Reler note 30 (B)) 406.80 363.24
406.80 363.24
Current provisions
Provision for gratuity 49.06 46.76
Provision [or compensated absences 14.05 13.89
63.11 60.65
Non-current provisions
Provision for gratuity 278.36 240.71
Provision for compensated absences 63.23 61.88
343.69 302.59




Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

16. Trade payables

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31,2024

- Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small enterprises 39.83 89.50
- Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro enterprises and small enterprises 231.36 212.04
- Trade payables to related parties (refer note 31) 1,520.23 2,725.49
1.791.42 3.027.03
1. Current Year- Ageing for trade payable
Outstanding for the following periods from due date
Particulars Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
year
(i) Undisputed dues - MSME - 39.07 - - - 39.07
(ii) Undisputed dues - Others 59.81 1,684.49 7.29 - - - 1,751.59
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - 0.76 - - - 0.76
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - z] = -
2, Previous Year- Ageing for trade payable
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date
Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(1) Undisputed dues - MSME - 89.50 - - - = 89.50
(ii) Undisputed dues - Others 73.77 1,989.93 - - 0.13 2,937.53

873.70
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others = - .

Trade Payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60 days terms.

The dues to micro and small enterprises as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to the extent information available with the

company is given below:

Particulars

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
1. Principal amount
2. Interest accrued

3. Payment made to suppliers (other than interest) bevond the appointed day, during the year

4. Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 (other than section 16)

5. Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 (section 16)

6. Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 for the payments already
made

7. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act,
2006

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
39.83 89.50
39.83 89.50
- 3.8
1.0 1.0
1.0 1.0

Note: Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled at 60 days terms. For terms and conditions and transactions with related party refer note 31.
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(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

17.

18.

19.

Other current financial liabilities

Employee related payables

Other current liabilities

Unearned revenue
Advances from customers

Current tax Liability (net)

Provision for income tax (Net of advance tax INR 328.15 lacs)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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As at
March 31. 2025

As at
March 31.2024

323.76 321.19
323.76 21.1
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
83.61 109.52
416.25 348.79
332.96 540.68
832.82 998.99
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31.2024

43.27

43.27




Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

20 Revenue from operations

Sale of traded goods*
Sale of services

Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
15,973-95 16,605.44
4,066.39 3,297.05
20,040.34 19,902.49

* The Company trades in numerous components which are used in the repair and maintenance of generator and related machinerv. Since, these traded
goods fall under the category of ‘Spare Parts’, thus a detailed disclosure of type of spare parts sold would be voluminous in nature, hence,has not been

given. Refer note 35 for additional disclosures.

21 Other income

Interest income on security deposits

Rental Income

Interest on Income Tax Refund

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Gain on lease modification

Others

22 Purchase of traded goods and services

Purchase of traded goods
- spare parts and consumables*

Direct expenses
- repair charges for job works

*

Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
12.50 6.29
14.32 13.01
0.48 -
0.38 3.31
41.59 -
4.78 -
74.05 22.61
Year Ended Year ended

March 21. 2025

March 31,2024

13,971.15 14,515.18
1,125.69 549.53
15,096.84 15,064.71

The Company trades in numerous components which are used in the repair and maintenance of generator and related machinery. Since, these traded

goods fall under the category of ‘Spare Parts’, thus a detailed disclosure of type of spare parts sold would be voluminous in nature, hence,has not been

given.

23 Change in inventories of traded goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Year Ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31,2024

Traded goods 2,947.74 2,726.82

Inventories at the end of the year

Traded goods (3,218.00) (2,947.74)
(270.26) (220.92)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

24 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Gratuity

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

25 Finance costs

Interest cost
Interest expenese on lease liability

Year Ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31,2024

2,128.81 1,941.24
56.09 64.73
126.24 124.94
38.08 76.14
2,349.22 2,207.05
Year Ended Year ended

March 31, 2025

March 31,2024

8.14 3.18
64.69 59.42
72.83 62.60

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

26a Other expenses

Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Communication expenses 41.56 48.78
Sales promotion and advertisement - 6.23
Legal and professional fees 229.65 172.80
Travelling and conveyance 292.53 294.77
Repairs and maintenance
-Others 25.64 24.55
Housekeeping Expenses 37.45 32.60
Computer Support Services 84.25 84.44
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 175.41 26.50
Provision for doubtful advance-EMD 20.44 -
Power and fuel consumed 24.94 22.18
Printing and stationery 15.22 16.49
Rent (short term leases) 22.27 10.05
Service charges for business support 174.21 201.49
Insurance 84.85 64.54
Freight outward 85.09 74.66
Wages to casual labour 81.28 79.58
Contracted security 66.90 62.25
Payment to auditors (refer details below) 14.00 14.00
Gain/Loss of Written of Fixed Assets - 0.09
Rates & Taxes 27.53 6.53
CSR Expense (refer details below) 14.33 6.13
Training Expenses 0.04 73.36
Miscellaneous expenses 0.27 8.68

1,517.86 1,330.70

Payment to auditors*

Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Statutory audit 10.20 10.50
Tax audit 1.80 1.50
Out of pocket expenses 2.00 2.00

14.00 14.00
* excluding applicable taxes
Corporate social responsibility
Accrual towards unspent obligations/(excess) in relation to:

- Ongoing project - -
Total - -
Amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 14.33 6.13
Add: Accrual of previous year unspent amount - -
Less : Excess spends in previous year - -
Amount spent during the year:

(i) Construction/acquisition of an asset = -
(ii) On purpose other than (i) above 14.33 6.13
Amount of cumulative excess at the end of the year = =
(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

26b Income tax expense

Year Ended Year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31,2024

Income Tax expense
Current Tax
Current tax on profits for the year 371.43 369.96
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 1.20 8.69
Total current tax expense 372.63 378.65
Deferred tax
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets (59.86) (45.27)
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) (59.86) (45.27)
Ineonme lax expense 3L/ 333.48
Income tax expense is atlributable Lo:
Profit from continuing operations 312.77 333.38
Profit from discontinued operations - -

312.77 333.38

Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 31,2025 and

March 31, 2024

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Accounting profit before tax 1,131.48 1,329.13
At India's statutory Income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2024 : 25.168 %) 284.77 334.52
Adjustment in respect of income tax related to earlier year 1.20 8.69
CSR expenses 3.61 1.54
Others 23.19 (11.37)

312.77 333.38

27. Earning per share (EPS)

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The numbers used in calculating basic and diluted earnings are stated below :

Year Ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended

Profit for the year after taxation (% Lacs) 818.71
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year 1,20,00,000
Face value per share () 10.00

6.82

Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) (%)

QY
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Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affeet the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,
Uncertainity about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcome that require a material adjustment to the carrving amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrving amount of asscts and liabilities within the next financial year, are deseribed below. The Company
based its assumptions and estimation on parameters available when the financial statements are prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change duc to market changes or circumstances arising beyvond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they oceur.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits):

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Discount rate is the parameter which is subject to change. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India.
Mortality tables change only at interval in response to demographie changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 30.

Allowance for doubtful debts

The allowance for doubtful debts reflects management’s estimate of losses inherent in its credit portfolio. This allowance is based on Company’s
estimate of the losses to be incurred, which derives from past experience with similar receivables, current and historical past due amounts, write-
offs and collections, the careful monitoring of portfolio credit quality and current and projected economic and market conditions. Should the
present economic and financial situation persist or even worsen, there could be a further deterioration in the financial situation of the Company's
debtors compared to that already taken into consideration in caleulating the allowances recognized in the financial statements.

Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease including any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use
of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby
assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the
Company considers factors such as any significant leaschold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of
the lease and the importance of the underlyving asset to operations, taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of
suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic eircumstances. The
Company has applied an incremental borrowing rate for the purposc of computing lease liabilities based on the rate prevailing in India. The
incremental borrowing rate used was 8.5 to 10%

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
(a) Contingent liabilities
Bank guarantees 98.89 98.89
98.89 98.89

(b) Commitment
Estimated value of contracts remaining to be exceuted on capital account and not provided for: nil (Previous vear Nil)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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30. Employee benefit obligation

A. Defined contributions plans

The Company has recognised the following amounts in statement of profit and loss for the vear :

Year Ended Year ended
Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
i) Emplovees provident fund 123.68 121.38
ii)  Employvees state insurance 2.56 3.56
126,24 12.4.94
B. Defined benefits plans
The following figures are as per actuarial valuation, as at the Balance Shect date, carried out by an independent actuary:
a. The amount recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Year Ended Year ended
Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
i) Current service cost 36.94 44.06
ii) Interest cost 19.15 20.67
iii)  Actvarial (gains)/losses reclassified to other comprehensive income
3.74 (58.14)
59.83 6.59
b. The amount recognised as other comprehensive income:
X Lacs
Year Ended Year ended
Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
1) Actuarial (gains)/losses 3.74 (58.14)
3.74 (58.14)
¢. Areconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO):
X Lacs
As at As at
Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Opening defined benefit obligation 287.47 293.32
i) Current service cost 36.94 44.06
ii) Interest Cost 19.15 20.67
iii Actuarial (gains) / losses
) (gains) / 3.74 (58.14)
iv) Benefits Paid (19.88) (12.44)
Closing defined benbefit obligation 327.42 287.47
Current defined benefit obligation 49.05 46.76
Non-current defined benefit obligation 278.37 240.71
d. Expected benefit payments for the next year:
X LACS
As at As at
Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
i) Expected benefit payments for the next year 50.60 48.34
50.60 48.34
e. Following are the Principal Actuarial Assumption used for gratuity and compensated absences as at the balance sheet date:
Year Ended Year ended
Sr. No. Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31.2024
i) Discount rate 6.40% 6.90%
ii) Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%
iii)  Withdrawal rate 15.00% 15.00%

iv)  Mortality rate Indian assured lives mortality

(2006-08) ultimate

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and ulhfugm :

N

Indian assured lives mortality

(2006-08) (modified)ult
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Pal Jay Power Solutions Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

31. Related party disclosures

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship where control exists

Name of related party
Cummins Inc.

Cummins India Limited

Valvoline Cummins Private Limited

Cummins Technologies India Private Limited

Mr. Ashish Taneja

Mr. Madankumar Kotragauda Patil
Ms, Mrudul Jatin Bhatia

Ms. Sanjit Kaur Batra

Mr. Vivek Shouraiah Malapati
Mr. Anmol Batra

Mr. Pankaj Kapoor

Mr. Prasad Shridhar Kulkarni
Ms. Himanshi Dhyani

Mr. Deenadayalan Mani

Mr. Gaurav Jain

Nature of relationship

Ultimate holding company

Holding Company

Joint Venture of holding company
Fellow Subsidiary of holding company
Director

Director (upto 22nd July'24}
Director (upto 23rd Sept'24)
Director

Director (upto 5th Sept'24)

Addl. Director (wef 315t Aug'24)
Addl. Director (wef 12th Sept'24)
AddL. Director (wef 23rd Sept, 2024)

Company Secretary and Key management personnel

Manager and Key management personnel

Chief Finance Officer and Key management personnel

The above list of related parties and KMP is upto March 31, 2025. After such date, there is change in shareholding and Cummins India Limited is no longer a holding company
w.e.f April 01, 2025. Refer note 13(f) for details of change in shareholding.

b

~

The following table provides the total amount of transactions and balances with related parties pertaining to the relevant financial year:

Year Ended Year ended
Nature of transaction Name of the party
party March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Sales and purchases of goods and Services

Sales of goods and services Cummins India Limited 4,104.55 3,611.93

Cummins Technologies India Private Limited 52.96 24.69

4.157.51 3.636.62

Purchases of goods and services Cummins India Limited 11,147.86 12,331.38

Valvoline Cummins Private Limited 2,427.24 2,143.78

Cummins Technologies India Private Limited 4.26 B

13.579.30 14.478.28

Purchasc of software licenses Cummins Inc. 7.01 3.31

Directors sitting fees Directors sitting fees 0.30 0.45

KMP Remuneration KMP Remuneration 11.30 10.01

¢) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services

Nature of transaction Year Ended Year ended

Name of the Party

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2023

Trade pavable (purchases of goods and services)

Trade receivables (sale of goods and services)

Cummins India Limited
Valvoline Cummins Private Limited
Cummins Technologies India Private Limited

Cummins India Limited
Cummins Technologies India Private Limited

Terms and conditions of transactions with related partics:

=

ii

Includes remuneration paid to key managerial personnel
The sales to and purchases from related parties including services are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm'’s length transactions. Qutstanding balances at the

1,473.14
46.43
0.65

113.90
21.76

2,251.28
473.88
0.33

135.63
0.56

year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received from any related party receivables or payables. For
the period ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owned by related parties (March 31, 2024: nil). This

assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

iii) KMP's also participate in post-employment benefit plans and other long term benefits provided by the company. The amounts in respect of these towards the KMP's cannot be
segregated as these are based on actuarial valuation for all employees of the Company.
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32.

33-

(i)

Lid)

(iii)

4.

a)

i)

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Makers. The Board of Directors have been
identified as the Chief Operating Decision Makers. The operations of the company fall under sale of engine spare parts & related services which is considered to be the only
reportable segment. Furthermore all the customers of the company are located in India and thus, no reporting on the basis of geographical segments is done to the Chief
Operating Decision Makers. No customer contributes individually 10% or more of Company's total revenue.

Fair value disclosures

Fair values hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are

defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of linancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Linancial assels and liabililies imeasured al lair value - recuremy L value measuremenls
The Company does not have any financial instruments which are measured at Fair value either through statement of profit and loss or through other comprehensive income.

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost
All financial assets and financial liabilities are recorded at amortised cost the details of which are given below:
The management assessed that the fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying values.

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Financial assets
Non current financial assets

Other non-current 85.39 56.81
Current financial assets

(a) Trade receivables 3.,005.95 3.161.75
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 175.75 811.78
(c) Other current financial assets 125.61 89.05
Total 3,392.70 4,119.39
Financial liabilities
Non current financial liabilities

Lease liability 479.96 548.77
Current financial linbilities

Lease liability 154,64 99.76
Trade payables 1,791.42 3.027.03
Other financial liabilities 323.76 321.19
Total 2,749.78 3,996.75

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors:

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

Market risk comprises three Lypes of risks as follows

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument which will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The Company's investments
in fixed deposits pay interest at fixed interest rates. Though company has a borrowing facility in terms of working capital demand loan, the utilisation of credit is minimal. Thus

managing its interest rate risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of interest payable:

Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 202!
Interest rate % change 3t 5 March 31, 2024
Effect on Profit Effect on Profit
before tax before tax
1% Increase (0.90) (0.35)
7.00% 1% Decrease 0.90 0.325
1% Increase (0.90) (0.33)
9.00% 1% Decrease 0.90 0.35
Foreign currency risk

The Company is not exposed to foreign currency sensitivity as it does not have any financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currency.

Price risk

The Company doesn't have any investment other than fixed deposits issued as security deposits to customers. These fixed deposits are fixed interest rate bearing instruments,

Thus, there is no material price risk.

Hence, due to its immaterial value, no sensitivity data is being disclosed.
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b)

c)

d)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligation under financial instrument oc customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to
credit risk primarily {rom trade receivables and other receivables. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets

recognised at year end, as summarised below:

Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024

Non-current financial asscts
Other financial assets 85.39 56.81
Current financial assets
Trade receivables 3,005.95 316175
Cash and cash equivalents 175 811.78
Other financial assets 125.61 89.05

3:392.70 4,119.39

The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls, Where available at
reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Company's policy is to deal only with creditworthy

counterparties.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having
similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in various industries. Based on historical information about customer default rates,

management considers the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired.

Senior management is responsible for managing and analysing the credit risk for each new customer before standard payment, delivery terms and conditions are offered. The
Company assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors, Individual risk limits are set based on internal

or external assessment. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date for all customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of

financial assets.

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for all customers.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by treasury function. Treasury monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet

operational needs. Such forecasting takes into consideration the compliance with internal cash management policy.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

As at March 31, 2025 On demand Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5 years Total
Borrowings . - = < - -
Trade payables = 1,791.42 = = - 1,791.42
Other financial liabilities - 323.76 * - - 323.76
Lease liability - 52.67 158.00 482.71 104.43 797.81
As at March 31, 2024 On demand Less than 3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years >5 years Total
Borrowings - - - - - -
Trade payables - 3,027.03 . = 3,027.03
Other financial liabilities - 321.19 - - - 321.19
Lease liability - 29.60 110.10 516.43 208.70 883.02

Capital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to provide maximum returns to shareholders, benefits to other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions.

The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net Debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity

as shown in the balance sheet plus all other equity reserves attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company.

Gearing ratio is not calculated as there are no borrowings in the current and previous year.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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35
A

Revenue related disclosures

Disaggregation of revenue

Revenue recognised mainly comprises of sale of traded goods and sale of services. Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from

contracts with customers:

Particulirs Year Ended Year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31,2024
Revenue from contracts with customers
(1) Sale of produets 13,973.95 16,605.44
(ii) Sale of services 06630 3,297.05
Total revenue covered under Ind AS 115 20,040.34 19,902.49
Particulars Year Ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31.2024
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods translerred at a point in time 18,503.73 18,317.04
Services transferred over time 1.536.61 1.583.45
Revenue from contracts with customers * 20,040.34 19.902.49
Sect out below is the amount of revenue recognised from
Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year
- Unearned revenue 348.79 404.72
- Advance rom cuslomers 540.68 304.98
Performance obligations satistied in previous years = <
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Particulars Year Ended Year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31.2024
Revenue as per contracted price 20,470.50 20,197.70
Adjustments
Sales return (430.16) (295.21)
Discounts - .
Liquidated damages - -
Others - -
Revenue from contracts with customers 20.040.34 19.902.49
Contract balances
The following table provides informalion about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from conlract with customers:
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract liabilities
Advances from customers 332.96 540.68
Unearned revenue 416.25 348.79
Total contract liabilities 749.21 889.47
Contract assets 204.49 70.71
Less: Loss allowance - -
Net Confract asscts 204.49 70.71
Receivables
Trade receivables 3,317.86 ,298.25
Less: Loss allowance (311.91) (136.50)
Net receivables 3,005.95 3,161.75

Signiticant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the vear are as follows:

Particulars As at31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 |
Contract Liabilities Contract Liabilities
Advances from Unearned Advaneces from Unearned revenue
consumers revenue consumers

Opening balance 540.68 348.79 304.98 404.72
Addition during the year 332.96 416.25 540.68 248.70
Reversed during the vear - - - -
Revenue recognised during the year (540.68) (348.79) (304.98) (404.72)
Closing balance 332.96 416.25 540.68 348.79

The Company has allocated transaction price of ¥ 416.25 Lacs (March 31, 2024:% 348.79 Lacs ) to unsatisfied performance obligation related to service

which will be satisfied in next vear.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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36 Leases
i) Lease Liabilities presented in Balance Sheet
Particulars As at As at
March 21 2025 March 31 2024
Lease Liabilities (Current) 154.64 99.77
Leasc Liabilities (Non Current) 479.96 548.77
Toulul 634.60 040.84
ii) Movement of Lease Liability
Particulars As at As at
March 31 2025 March 31 2024
Opening Lease Liability 648.53 A4B.02
Add: Finance Cost 64.69 59.42
Add: Additions to Lease Liability 180.41 404.49
Less: Adjustment due to lease modification (60.45) B
Less: Payments (198.58) (164.00)
Closing Lease Liability 634.60 648.53
iii) Undiscounted Future minimum lease payments as at 31 March 2025 were as follows:
Particulars Within 1 year One to five years After 5 years
Lease Payments 210.67 482.71 104.43
iv) |Particulars Carrying Amount Depreciation Expense
As at As at As at As at
March 21 2025 March 21 2024 March 21 2025 March 31 2024
Buildings 602.83 600.23 171.70 116.69
Total 602.83 600.23 171.70 116.69
v)  Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were 190.71 lacs (31 March 2024:% 411.64 lacs).
vi) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
The statement of profit and loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:
Particulars As at As at
March 31 2025 March 31 2024
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Buildings 171.70 116.69
Interest expense (included in finance costs)
Buildings 64.69 59.42
Gain on lease modification 41.59
vii) Operating leases

The Company has entered into cancellable lease for office premises and machinery. Lease expense for the year ended 31 March, 2025 amounts

to Rs. 22.27 Lacs (31st March,2024 — Rs.10.05 Lacs).

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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37. Transfer pricing

d d.

Per transfer pricing legislations, the Company is required to use certain specﬂ'c methods in computing arm's length prices of |ntemanonal transactlons with associated enterprises and ation in
this respect. The legislations require such information and d ion to be aneouls in nature. The C has I (the ‘Consultant’) for ing the Transfer Pricing
Study (the 'Study’) to determine whether the transactions with associate enterprises undertaken during the financial year are on an "arm’s length basis". Management is of the opinion that the Company’s transactions are
at arm's length and requires no trunsfer pricing adjustments.

8
3 Disclosure of following ratios
Yearended | Yearended
Numerntor Denominator Asat Asat % Variance Reawon for varinnee
March 31, March 31,
2025 2024
Current ratio hns decreased mainly on aceount of the
(a) Current Ratio Current Assets Current liability 2,26 1.74 30% |decrense in trade payubles as significant amount was paid
prior to March 31, 2025.
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shnreholder's Equity 015 018 -20% (NA
(¢) Debt Senvice Coverage Rutio Enminp mvailable for debt service Debt Service 15.21 19.33 -21%| NA
PR Not Prodits ufbier tanesd=) Profoponee . . " Profit has decreased majorly due inerease in provision for
(d) Return on Equity Ratio Dmdcnd (ifany) Average Shareholder's Equity o0.21 0.33 -37% doubtful debts and advances and dopreciation.
() Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold OR sles Avernge [nventory 518 5.85 -11% | NA
() Trade Receivables turnover ratio Net Credit Snles/total sales Avg. Accounts Recvivable 6.50 7.83 -17% | NA
(g) Trade pnyubles turnover ratio Net Credit Purchases Average Trade Payubles 5.80 597 -3% | NA
(h) Net capital turnover ratio Net Soles Waorking capital 4.95 5.93 -16% | NA
(D)Net profit ralio Net Profit Net Sales 004 0.05 -18% | NA
S . . . " » Profit has deereased majorly due inercase in provision for
(i) Return on Capital employed Earning before interest and taxes Capital Employed 0.24 0.33 27% doubtful debts and advances and depreciation.
{k) Return on investment Earning before intercst and taxes Total Asscts 0.14 0.16 8% | NA
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Pal Jay Power Solutons Private Limited

(Formerly known as Cummins Sales & Service Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Indian Rupees Lacs, unless otherwise stated)

39 Additional regulatory information required by Schedule II1I
(i) Details of benami property held
No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made
thereunder.
(ii) Borrowing secutred against current assets .
The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are generally in agreement with
the books of accounts.
(i) wilful defaulter
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority in current year and presious vear
(iv) Relationship with struck off companies
The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off during current year and previous year under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.
(v) Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
(+i) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.
(vii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a.directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries
The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entits (ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that
the Company shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimale beneficiaries
(viii) Undisclosed income
There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of
account.
(ix) Details of erypto currency or virtual currency
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.
(x) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property
‘The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year. Right-of-use assets are revalued in current year due to
modification in lease term and monthly lease pay ments.
(xi) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in name of the company
There are no immonable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee, as disclosed in note 3(c) to the
tandalone financial ) owned by the Company.
(xii) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
There are no charges which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.
(xiii) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks
‘The company has not availaed any term loan/borrowed any funds from the bank except the Working Capital Demand Loan/Cash Credit limit set up with HitE&#Tiank. The said is limit is
utilised wholly for the purpose of meeting woring capital requirements.
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